**Release Notes** Axiom Version 2022.1



## Contents

About the release notes	2
New features and enhancements	3
What to know before upgrading	
Upgrade considerations	
Updating your Web Client navigation bar	
Upgrade considerations for web report filters	
Installation and technical changes	
Preparing and scheduling upgrades	
Getting help and training	24
Issues fixed in 2022.1	25
Appendix: Version 2022.1 Patches	

## About the release notes

Syntellis is pleased to announce the release of **Axiom Version 2022.1**. Each release of Axiom provides a variety of new features and enhancements to meet your needs. Many of these features and enhancements are a direct result of your feedback and suggestions.

The purpose of these release notes is to provide you with the following:

- High-level summary of new features and enhancements
- Information to know before upgrading
- Steps for preparing for and scheduling your upgrade
- List of fixed issues

These release notes cover the changes in the version 2022.1 release of the Axiom software platform. If you have licensed and installed products from our vertical product suites, please see the separate release notes for those products for more information.

## New features and enhancements

This section provides an overview of the features and enhancements in this release.

### Updated Web Client navigation

The Web Client navigation experience has been updated and improved:

- Navigation menu now easily accessible across the top instead of within a side panel
- Area menu and Launch menu combined into a single menu for quick access to different product areas and applications
- New Bookmarks panel for easy access to favorites and recent items
- Streamlined and updated Notifications panel
- Overall presentation and styling updated to match current standards for user experience and design

Custom and product navigation now displays across the top bar (replacin the Navigation panel) AXIOM Axiom Home Favorites ~ Recent Places ~ Reports ~		New panel for favorites and recent items
Axiom System: Axiom Software Test System  A Notifications  Notification  Peete al  Con  Take Soppose variance exceeds 8%.  S records age	Image: Second secon	PRODUCT AREAS         Home         Intelligence Center         ★ Favorites         System Administration         Look for the ★ loor         Axiom Software         Corporate Dashbor         MS Word Add-In         Security Manager         system_config         Updated menu combines Area and Launch menus

Example updated navigation bar

The navigation menu across the top is context-sensitive. For systems with installed products, it displays the menu for the current product area. If you are in the System Administration area, it displays the System Administration menu.

Dashboard	Tools ~ Auditing ~ System	m Status $\sim$ Infrastructure Section $\sim$ So	ftware Configuration $ imes$	L 狗 (	CA
	Table Manager			1	☆
Users		Standard Users	Viewer Users		
3	Scheduler	2510/2600	0/250		
	Security Manager	Expires in 1334 days	Expires in 1334 days		
	Users	Table Manager Custom Help Admin Userrs Save Lock Administration Scheduler	Table Manager Custom Help Admin Users Save Lock Administration 3 Scheduler Security Manager	Table Manager       Custom Help Admin       Users     Save Lock Administration       3     Scheduler       Scutity Manager	Table Manager Custom Help Admin Users Save Lock Administration 3 Scheduler Security Manager Custom Help Admin Standard Users 2510/2600 0/250

Example System Administration menu in updated navigation bar

The task bar below the navigation bar also has updated styling. All task bar features except the navigation panel continue to work the same way as they did before the update.

<b>₽</b>										5	습 (
Expense Category ecting v Sales Recion	5	enses Overview arison Q1 to Q2								🛓 Export to	o Exce
ose a value for Region. 👻 🛪				Calculation Q				Calculation Q	2		
		Second Region 🕇	Variance Q1-Q2	Jan	Feb	Mar	Q1	Apr	Мау	Jur	n
y Clear All Cancel	•	Asia region	\$-7,615 😑	\$124,614	\$7,730	\$7,730	\$140,073	\$15,056	\$38	\$4,217	7
	•	Corporate departments	\$-29,683 😑	\$324,941	\$13,694	\$13,694	\$352,329	\$25,098	\$23,696	\$23,223	3
	•	Europe region	\$-163 😑	\$4,983	\$-176	\$-176	\$4,631	\$0	\$1,074	\$82	2
		North America region	\$-26,779 😑	\$838,570	\$70,039	\$70,039	\$978,647	\$83,015	\$52,999	\$47,867	7
			Variance Q1-Q2	Jan	Feb	Mar	Q1	Apr	Мау	Jur	n
		US Central	\$-7,571 😑	\$313,755	\$27,556	\$27,556	\$368,866	\$31,587	\$10,703	\$20,258	8
		US East	\$-16,734 😑	\$310,792	\$18,994	\$18,994	\$348,781	\$33,376	\$29,023	\$18,445	5
		US West	\$-2,474 😑	\$214,023	\$23,489	\$23,489	\$261,000	\$18,053	\$13,273	\$9,165	5

Example form showing updated task bar

The new navigation is automatically available in the Web Client. Your existing custom web navigation items will work seamlessly in this new environment. Although no manual adjustments are necessary for continued operation, custom clients may decide to make elective improvements to optimize the use of the new navigation. For more information, see Updating your Web Client navigation bar.

### New Filter Wizard in the Report Builder

The Filter Wizard in the Report Builder has been redesigned to make it easier and more intuitive to create filters that impact report data. The new Filter Wizard is available to create report-level filters, as well as filters on individual columns, calculations, and column groups. Improvements include:

- Ability to quickly search for specific tables and columns within the wizard
- Enhanced ability to browse, search, and select existing values within a column to create the filter

- Intuitive and simplified presentation of each filter statement to more easily define, edit, and understand the complete filter
- Improved user experience for creating compound filter statements, including drag and drop design and visual representation of statements combined using AND/OR
- Ability to use predefined filter statements as global filters or as starting points for custom filters (see next section for more information)
- Improved context-sensitivity when defining filters for columns, calculations, and groups so that only tables relevant to the current context are shown

Edit f	ilter		×
Searc	Iumns     Filter Library       Ch tables     Search colum       I Dimension Tables       ACCT	Image: WorldRegion       <> + Europe         Image: AND +       AND +         Image: AND +       AND +	
Ŧ	DEPT     Dept     Description     Template	E Category = ▼ Revenue CR ▼ ■ E FcstAcct = ▼ Program Revenue	
•	WorldRegion     Country     Region		
۲	Currency VP Employees	DEPT.WorldRegion <> 'Europe' AND DEPT.Description LIKE '%store%' AND (ACCT.Category = 'Revenue' OR ACCT.FcstAcct = 'Prog Revenue')	ram
Save a	s Global Filter	Cancel	ок

New Filter Wizard in the Report Builder

Additionally, report-level filters have been moved from their previous location in the Report Configuration panel to a separate Filter tab. This new location makes it easier to review and manage all of your report-level filters.

	H				
Intelligence Center       Build       Parameters       Filters       Preview       Save         All Filters       + Add ▼       Revenue Filter       General filter       Save         Budget Filter       Enabled       Name       Revenue Filter       Description         Filter Criteria       Edit       Description       Edit         EDEPT.World/Region = 'Europe' AND (ACCT.Category = 'Revenue' OR       OR       Edit	?				
Revenue Filter       General filter         General filter       Image: Comparison of the rest of t	Intelligence Center	Build Parameters Filters	Preview	s	ave 🔻
	Revenue Filter General filter Budget Filter	Enabled Name Revenue Filter Description Filter Criteria Edit DEPT.WorldRegion = 'Europe' AND (ACCT.Category = 'Revenue' OR			

New Filters tab in Report Builder

For more information on using the new Filter Wizard in the Report Builder, see the following topic in Axiom Help: *Using the Filter Wizard in the Report Builder* (AX1698).

Filters created using the new Filter Wizard use a different underlying structure than existing filters. Your existing filters will be migrated to the new structure when the report is opened for the first time after upgrading to 2022.1. The vast majority of filters will be migrated without issue, however, there are a few existing filter configurations that will not migrate. For more information, see Upgrade considerations for web report filters.

### Global filters in web reports

Web reports now support the concept of *global filters*. This means that the report can reference a filter stored in the centralized Filter Library instead of saving the filter directly in the report. If the global filter in the Filter Library is updated, the report will automatically use the updated filter criteria, without needing to edit the report.

For example, imagine that you are a healthcare organization and you want to filter various reports by codes relating to COVID-19. You create a filter with the codes and save the filter in the Filters Library, then reference the filter in the reports. Later, if you need to add a new code, you can edit the global filter. All reports that reference the global filter are now automatically filtered by the additional code.

Using the new Filter Wizard in the Report Builder, you can now:

• Create a filter and then save it to the Filter Library for future use

- Use a filter from the Filter Library to create a global filter in the report—both new-style filters and existing legacy filters can be used
- Combine global filters with "local" report-specific filters as needed
- Convert a global filter reference into a local filter within the report, so that the filter is no longer tied to the global filter in the Filter Library

Columns Filter Library	≡ WorldRegion =      ✓ Europe     Global filter can     be optionally
earch filter library	AND - converted to
Report Filters	Store Revenue
Acct Category Marketing	Reference to global filter
Acct Category Revenue	will be updated automatically when filter
Compound Acct and D	is edited
Compound GL2020 filter	
Compound Like Dept	
Compound with referen	Use saved filters in the Filter Library just drag and drop
Date Part Filter Dept	to the filter canvas
OateTime	
Dept 20000	
Dept between	DEPT.WorldRegion = 'Europe' AND ((ACCT.Category = 'Revenue' AND DEPT.Description LIKE '%Store%'))
Dept Date Part	
GI 2019 Dept Worldregi	• ·

Filter Library in new Filter Wizard to use global filters

Currently, any filter created and saved to the Filter Library from the new Filter Wizard can only be used in web reports. Future releases may expand the use of the new Filter Wizard to other areas of the application.

The term *legacy filters* refers to filters created using the previous version of the Filter Wizard and saved to the Filter Library. Only regular legacy filters can be used as global filters in web reports. Limit filters cannot be used at this time.

For more information on using global filters, see the following topic in Axiom Help: *Using global filters in the Report Builder* (AX1708).

### Filter web reports by process columns and date parts

Using the new Filter Wizard in web reports, you can now filter the report by process columns or by date parts. Both of these options are new—it was not previously possible to create these types of filters in the legacy Filter Wizard.

#### Date part filters

For Date and DateTime columns, you can specify a date part to base the filter on, instead of basing the filter on the full date or date-time. For example, you can specify Quarter as the date part and then create a filter to only show records where the date is in the second quarter. You can select any of the available date part options and use any of the valid values in the filter.

Create new filter					×
Columns Filter Library	,		AdmitDate (Quarter) <del>-</del>	· = ▼ Q2	
Search columns			Full DateTime		
▼ I EncounterEDS	^		Fiscal year		
EncounterID			Year		
Description					
AdmitDate			Fiscal quarter		
DischargeDate			Quarter		
TotalEstimatedPaymen			Fiscal month		
TotalActualPayments			Month		
TotalFixedDirectCost					
TotalFixedIndirectCost			Week		
TotalVariableDirectCost			Day of year		
TotalVariableIndirectC		Encount	Day of month	= 2	
MSDRG			Day of week		
Entity	-		Hour		
Save as Global Filter			Minute	Cancel	ок

Date part selector for creating date part filters

### Process management filters

If a report is configured to show process management columns, you can create a filter based on useful process information. For example, you can filter the report to only show plan files in a particular step or with a particular status, or in relation to the time spent in a step.

Edit filter		×
Columns       Filter Library         Search columns         > I DEPT         > I Process Management         > Process Status Columns         I Process Status         I Current Step         > Process Step Columns         I Process Step         Step Status         I Time in Step	Process Step     Time in Step     Y     2 days     AND *        Process Step = '2' AND Time in Step > 172800	
Save as Global Filter	Cancel	ОК

Process Management columns in the Filter Wizard

### Display hyperlinks in web reports

You can now display active hyperlinks in web reports, so that report viewers can use the hyperlinks to navigate to supporting detail or related information. This feature is intended for cases where each row of the report has a corresponding link, and these links can be generated dynamically based on a value relating to the current row data.

For example, if the rows of the report represent department codes or capital request codes that are active in a plan file process, you can dynamically generate a link to the process routing page for each code. Report viewers can click on the links to view the process details for particular codes as needed.

Process Status By Department							
Dept	Process Status	Current Step	Current Step Name	Total	More Information		
21000 - Corporate Administration	Active	2	Management Approval	\$109,424	Open routing page for 21000		
22000 - Information Technologies	Active	2	Management Approval	\$446,802	Open routing page for 22000		
23000 - Purchasing & Materials Mgmt	Active	3	Management Edits	\$129,671	Open routing page for 23000		
24000 - Business Development	Active	3	Management Edits	\$29,110	Open routing page for 24000	routing details	
25000 - Finance	Active	2	Management Approval	\$169,733	Open routing page for 25000		
26000 - Portfolio Management	Active	3	Management Edits	\$105,420	Open routing page for 26000		
27000 - Human Resources	Active	2	Management Approval	\$113,366	Open routing page for 27000		
28000 - Facilities	Active	3	Management Edits	\$851,278	Open routing page for 28000		
29000 - Legal	Active	2	Management Approval	\$137,963	Open routing page for 29000		
40000 - Los Angeles - Store 3400	Active	3	Management Edits	\$17,490,615	Open routing page for 40000		
				\$118,326,278			
H 4 1 2 3 ► H					25 🗸 iter	ns per page 1 - 25 of	f 59 items

Example report with a hyperlink column

You can define two different types of links in web reports. Hyperlinks are enabled and configured at the column level, in the **Column Configuration** properties.

- **Custom**: Link to any page in the Axiom system by entering a relative URL. Variables can be used in the URL so that it is unique per row of the report.
- **Plan File**: Link to any set of plan files in the Axiom system. When using this option, Axiom dynamically generates the URL to each plan file on a per row basis, given a file group context. The row dimension of the report must be the key column of the plan code table in order to generate the links.

ink Properties		^
Enable link		
Link type		
Custom		~
URL	Insert variable	•
/process/16682/planfile?planvalue={value}		
Link text	Insert variable	•
Open routing page for {value}		
Link tooltip	Insert variable	•
Click to view full routing details		
Open link in new tab		

Example hyperlink properties

For more information on using hyperlinks, see the following topic in Axiom Help: *Displaying hyperlinks in web reports* (AX1696).

### Use date parts in Axiom queries

You can now report on Date and DateTime columns using date parts in Axiom queries. When using date parts—such as Year or Month—the column data is effectively transformed into the specified date part for purposes of the report. This allows you to not only display the specified date part, but also group, sort, and filter the query by the date part.

In order to use a date part, use the following syntax in the field definition of the Axiom query:

AxDatePart (ColumnName, DatePartName) : SpecialColumnName

- ColumnName is the table.column name, such as Encounter.AdmitDate.
- *DatePartName* is the name of the date part to return, such as Year, Month, YearMo, or Quarter. All of the date parts that are available for use in web reports are also available for use in Axiom queries.

• *SpecialColumnName* is an optional defined name for the transformed column, so that you can reference it in the sum by, data sort, or data filter for the Axiom query. The name can be omitted if you do not need to reference the column elsewhere.

For example, the following report uses date part syntax to group, sort, and filter the report by the YearMo date part:

<	Axiom Assistant		į	Home	🖺 Repo	rt1 ×				
	Worksheet Settings for Sheet1	? ^	K4		-					
er	Worksheet Settings for Sheet			А	В	С	D	E	F	G
Explorer	Axiom Queries	? ~	1							
EX	Axiom Queries	Ť	2							
	Quany Nama Aviam Quany #1	+ →	3				AxDatePart(EncounterEDS.AdmitDate,YearMo):AdmitYearMo	C	ostDetail.A	Amount
SS	Query Name: Axiom Query #1 🛛 🗸 🥒	7 7	4							
Process	✓ Active Horizontal ✓ Drillable		5							
Pr	Drivery Tables Francisco FDC		6	[aq1]						
+	Primary Table: EncounterEDS		7	201902			201902		3342.61	
tant	Sum By: AdmitYearMo		8	201903			201903		1362.85	
Assis	Data Filter: AdmitYearMo>201901	7	9	201904			201904		3368.68	
	Data Sort: AdmitYearMo		10	201905			201905		3532.98	
Sheet		_ =	11	201906			201906		2184.88	
	Sheet Sort:		12	201907			201907		16660.39	
stant	Control Rows/Columns		13	201908			201908		7048.43	
sta	W. Dafrach Sattinan		14	201909			201909		746.00	

Example Axiom query using date part syntax

For more information on using date parts in Axiom queries, see the following topic in Axiom Help: *Using date parts in Axiom queries* (AX1511).

### Additional Report Builder enhancements

• Columns and column groups with filters now display with a filter icon in the Report Builder. This makes it easy for the report designer to see at-a-glance that a particular column or group is being filtered.

WorldRegion Analysis					dd Secondary Titl	
+ Add Subtitle						
	+ •					
□ ACCT	🗆 Asia 🚥	🗆 Europe 🚥	🖾 North America 🚥	🖽 Total 🚥	🗆 Count 🚥	
ACCT		Asia 🍸	1	Europe 🝸	North America	<b>T</b>
4000 - Revenue		\$1,985,992	>	\$136.110	\$12,46	7.659

• An Intelligence Center breadcrumb is now available in the Report Builder, to quickly exit the report and navigate to the Intelligence Center.

AXIOM	ence Center $ \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! $		
Intelligence Center	-		Build
Data Context		WorldRegion An	alvsis
GL2021	1		
Search tables	Search columns	+ Add Subtitle	
▶ ⊞ GL2021			+ •
<ul> <li>İDİ Dimension Tables</li> </ul>		ACCT ···	🖾 Asia 🚥 🖽 Europe 🚥 🖾
<ul> <li>Related Tables</li> </ul>			

• The **Parameters** tab of the Report Builder has been updated to match the styling of the new Filters tab. Previously each parameter had a set of general properties that displayed in a right-hand panel, and a set of parameter-specific properties that displayed in the middle panel. These properties have been combined into a single panel.

Intelligence Cen	iter		Build	Parameters	Filters	Preview	Save 🔻
All Parameters FilterCols Column List Filter by FilterValue Column Value Select filter values	★ Add ▼	FilterCols Name FilterCols Display prompt Filter by Required					
		Column List Configuration         Selected columns Edit         ACCT (ACCT.ACCT)         Category (ACCT.Category)         Type (ACCT.Type)         Default value         ACCT       ×	<ul> <li></li></ul>				

• Several new date parts are available for Date and DateTime columns. These date parts expand the available options to display, group, and filter by date and date-time values.

DateTime part to retrie	DateTime part to retrieve					
Full DateTime 🗸						
Full DateTime						
Date Only						
Fiscal YearMo		- 11				
YearMo						
Fiscal year						
Year		•				

• You can now set default formats for Date and DateTime columns at the grid level of a web report, using the **Grid Configuration** settings. Any Date or DateTime columns that use the default formatting will inherit any changes made here.

## Additional enhancements

The Purge System Data task now deletes expired announcements when it runs. By default, the task deletes all announcements that are 30 days past their configured expiration date. This setting can be configured as needed using the **System.SystemDataPurge** system job.

# What to know before upgrading

This section details the upgrade considerations and technical changes that apply when upgrading to version 2022.1. Please make sure to review this section carefully before upgrading.

## Upgrade considerations

The following upgrade considerations apply when moving from the most recent Axiom release of 2021.3 to the new release of 2022.1. If you are upgrading from an earlier version, please also see the release notes for the interim versions for any additional upgrade considerations.

### Removal of support for in-memory document reference tables

Description	The ability to store document reference tables as in-memory tables has been removed. This feature was primarily intended as a proof-of-concept, and we do not believe it was ever implemented at a client site. It is being removed now because the feature does not align with our current performance optimization efforts and roadmap. Additionally, use of document reference tables has been increasingly de-emphasized over time, to the extent that many clients do not use document reference tables at all.
	<b>IMPORTANT:</b> The in-memory feature was only available to on-premise installations. This upgrade consideration does not apply to cloud systems.
	In the extremely unlikely event that any on-premise client has this feature enabled, it must be disabled before upgrading to 22.1. The upgrade to 22.1 does not support upgrading memory optimized tables.
Notes for testing and review	We do not believe this feature was ever implemented at a client site. If you are an on-premise client and you believe this feature might be enabled, please contact Axiom Support for assistance.

Some filters will r	not migrate in web reports
Description	Version 2022.1 introduces a new Filter Wizard for web reports. Due to the back- end changes necessary to support the new Filter Wizard, some existing filters in web reports will not migrate to the new structure.
Notes for testing and review	Please see the discussion in Upgrade considerations for web report filters for more details.

Removal of duplicative process columns in the Report Builder								
Description	When creating a web report that includes Process Management columns, it was previously necessary to include the step name and step number columns separately. Going forward, these columns have been combined into a single step column that can be used to display the step name and number in various formats.							
	<ul> <li>In the Process Status Columns node, the previous columns Current Step and Current Step Number are combined into a single column Current Step.</li> </ul>							
	<ul> <li>In the Process Step Columns node, the previous columns Step Name and Step Number are combined into a single column Process Step.</li> </ul>							
	When using Current Step or Process Step, you can use the <b>Show description</b> and <b>Description display format</b> options in the Column Configuration panel to display just the step name, step number, or some combination of both.							
	If you have existing reports that use the old columns, these reports will continue to work and the columns will return just the name or number as applicable.							
Notes for testing and review	Nothing to test or review for this item.							
Removal of unnec	essary items from System Administration menu							
Description	As part of the Web Client navigation updates in 2022.1, a couple of unnecessary items were removed from the System Administration menu:							

- Home: The Home menu item is not necessary as part of the System Administration menu, because it is available elsewhere. You can use the Area menu to navigate to your home page (custom systems) or to a product home page (systems with installed products).
- Forms Explorer: The Forms Explorer has been superseded by the Intelligence Center. Although the Forms Explorer page has not been removed from the application, it is a deprecated feature and may be removed in a future release.

Notes for testing Nothing to test or review for this item. and review

References to raw	v table and column names no longer work
Description	Version 2022.1 changes the underlying table and column names in the database. If you have an import or an Execute SQL Command Scheduler task that references the raw table and column names from the database, these references will no longer work after upgrade. In previous versions, raw table and column names used a naming convention such as tb### or col###, where ### is the table or column ID number.
	The use of raw table and column names in SQL statements was and remains unsupported, however, the application did not prevent the execution of SQL statements that used these raw names. Therefore, in some cases, these raw names may be present in client systems.
	If your system uses supported syntax to reference tables and columns in SQL statements, then the database naming changes will not affect the operation of your system. When using supported syntax in previous versions, tables were referenced as { tablename }, and columns were referenced as the column name or as { tablename . columnname }. These references will continue to work after upgrade.
	Going forward, the supported syntax for tables has additional nuance that should be adopted when creating new SQL statements or editing existing SQL statements. This syntax works as follows:
	• {Read: Tablename}: This syntax should be used when reading data from the table, which should be true for the vast majority of references.
	• {Write: Tablename}: This syntax should be used when writing data to the table.
	• {Table: Tablename}: This syntax should be used to return the underlying table object name in statements such as TRUNCATE or when seeding an identity value.
	Existing { tablename } references will continue to work in SQL Server database environments.
Notes for testing and review	When your upgrade to 2022.1 is scheduled, the upgrade process will include a scan of your system to identify whether your system uses any of these unsupported table and column references. If any of these references are found, we will work with you to fix the references in the affected assets.

## Updating your Web Client navigation bar

When you upgrade to version 2022.1, the contents of the Navigation panel now display as a menu in the navigation bar across the top of the page. To preserve backward-compatibility, the existing contents of the Navigation panel are displayed as-is—even though other changes to the Web Client navigation bar mean that some items in the menu are duplicative or may no longer be necessary. After upgrade, you may want to modify your navigation menu to optimize it for the new environment.

**NOTE:** This upgrade consideration only applies to custom Axiom systems. If your system uses upgradeable Axiom products, the contents of the navigation menu is controlled by those products.

For custom Axiom systems, the web navigation items are defined in the following file: \Axiom\Axiom System\Forms Runtime\WebClientNavigationPane.axl. This file can only be accessed by administrators.

A	xiom System ^						
	Diagnostics						
۲	Document Templates						
•	Forms Runtime						
	Axiom.FormThemes						
	🗋 Axiom2018.FormThemes						
	🗋 Axiom2021.FormThemes						
	Platform.FormThemes						
	🙀 Platform.WebClientNavigationPane						
	🙀 ProductAreaTaskPane						
	🙀 WebClientNavigationPane						

Task pane file that defines the web navigation items for custom systems

By default, the WebClientNavigationPane file contains the following items to be displayed as the navigation menu.

Task Pane Structure		Selected Item Details
Home		Section name
Favorites		Intelligence Center
Recent Places		Tool Tip
Reports		
Forms Explorer		Custom Symbol
Intelligence Center		🗙
	Default web navigation items	Display Settings Display child items inline Shortcut Target command://IntelligenceCenter X

Default navigation items

Note that many of these items are now easily available in other areas of the updated navigation bar:

- Home and Intelligence Center are available on the Area menu (the Syntellis icon on the far right of the navigation bar).
- Favorites and Recent Places are available on the new Bookmarks panel.
- Additionally, the Forms Explorer page has been deprecated and replaced by the Intelligence Center. Although the page still exists, there should be no reason to use it.

However, the WebClientNavigationPane file is customizable. Your organization may have edited this file to add, remove, or rename items. Because this file can be customized, Axiom does not overwrite it as part of system upgrades. You will see the same navigation items before and after the upgrade, just presented in a new location.

As part of your upgrade to 2022.1, we recommend that you review your WebClientNavigationPane file and decide what you want to display in your navigation bar going forward. For example:

- You can choose to do nothing and leave the navigation as is for now.
- You can edit your existing WebClientNavigationPane file as desired to remove any items that you
  find duplicative or unnecessary in the context of the updated navigation. This is the
  recommended approach if you have customized your WebClientNavigationPane file and you want
  to preserve those customizations while also making additional updates.

**NOTE:** If your WebClientNavigationPane file contains the **Forms Explorer** item, we recommend removing it. Although this page is still available now, it may be removed in a future release.

• You can replace your existing WebClientNavigationPane file with the new default navigation, using the system-delivered file Platform.WebClientNavigationPane.axl. Going forward, the new default navigation items for custom systems are simply Home and Reports.

If you want to replace your existing WebClientNavigationPane file to use the new default navigation:

- 1. In the Axiom System > Forms Runtime folder, delete WebClientNavigationPane.
- 2. In the same folder, right-click Platform.WebClientNavigationPane and select Copy.
- 3. Right-click the **Copy of Platform.WebClientNavigationPane** and select **Rename**. Change the name of the file to be **WebClientNavigationPane**.

## Upgrade considerations for web report filters

Version 2022.1 introduces a new Filter Wizard for web reports. Due to the back-end changes necessary to support the new Filter Wizard, some existing filters in web reports will not migrate to the new structure. If a filter cannot be migrated, the report will display an error about the problem filter. You can edit the report to delete the filter and then re-create it using the new Filter Wizard as applicable.

Additionally, some existing filters will migrate and continue to work, but due to syntax issues these filters cannot be edited in the new Filter Wizard going forward. In this case you can leave the filter as-is or delete the filter, but you cannot edit the filter or create a new version of the same filter going forward.

The following sections provide more information on these filter migration issues. If your organization has created web reports using the new Report Builder that was introduced in version 2021.1, please review these sections to determine if any of your reports may be affected.

## Unsupported or invalid filter syntax

The previous Filter Wizard allowed input of any text string. This means that it was possible to create filters using invalid or unsupported syntax. Although in most cases an invalid filter would cause an error, in some cases it might have been silently ignored.

Filters using unsupported syntax may have had the intended effect in particular configurations, but are unsupported because they may not work in all configurations. For example, in the previous Filter Wizard it was possible to manually input a filter string that used math operators against multiple columns, and the report may have refreshed without error with this filter, but this is not supported filter syntax in Axiom.

If a filter statement is invalid or unsupported, the full statement will be carried over as-is to 2022.1. The report will return an error message about a filter that could not be migrated. In the new Filter Wizard, the filter statement will display as a non-editable block and will be flagged as invalid. To clear the error message, you can delete the filter and save the report.

### KNOWN EXCEPTIONS:

- Filters that compare two columns using greater-than or less-than syntax are not officially supported, but will migrate as working filter statements if the rest of the filter uses valid and supported syntax. These filters will be applied to the report in the same way as previous versions. Once these filters are migrated, they cannot be edited, but they can be deleted. We may provide full support for this syntax in a future version, at which point the Filter Wizard will also be enhanced to allow creation of new column comparison filters.
- Filters that use greater-than, less-than, or BETWEEN syntax on string columns were not officially supported in previous versions, but are now supported and will migrate as working filter statements. These filters will be applied to the report in the same way as previous versions.

The new Filter Wizard does not allow creation of free-form filter statements. Therefore, these types of invalid or unsupported filter statements cannot be created going forward. Future versions of the Filter Wizard may provide official support for some of these currently unsupported filter statements.

## Filters on calculations or groups that use columns from multiple tables

In previous versions, if a calculation or group used columns from multiple tables, the Filter Wizard did not consistently constrain the list of valid tables for the context. In some cases you could create filters that were not valid on all of the tables referenced by the calculation or group, or were not valid in the context of the primary table specified as the Data Context for the report. Although some of these invalid filters would cause an error, in other cases the invalid filter was silently ignored on the tables where it could not be applied.

Starting with 2022.1, the Filter Wizard correctly constrains the valid list of tables based on the tables referenced by the calculation or group, and based on what is allowed by the primary table specified as the Data Context for the report. Going forward, it should not be possible to create a filter that is invalid based on the current configuration of the report.

If your report contains a filter on a calculation or group that does not follow these rules, the migrated filter will cause an error in the report. You can resolve the error as follows:

- Review the filter to determine the desired effect of the filter, then delete it from the calculation or group.
- If you can achieve the same filter result by following the valid table rules in the new Filter Wizard, you can simply create a new filter on the calculation or group.
- If the old filter is not possible using the new rules, you should evaluate what you were attempting
  to achieve and determine whether there is a better way to achieve it. For example, if you had a
  group with columns from two different data tables, and the group had a filter defined on one of
  the data tables, this filter is not valid because it cannot be applied to the second data table. In this
  situation, you may need to define the filter directly on the column instead of on the group, or
  perhaps separate the columns into two different groups.

## Column-only filters

In some cases, the previous Filter Wizard may have created filters that did not use fully qualified Table.Column syntax. It was also previously possible to manually input filters that did not use fully qualified syntax.

Going forward, all filters created in the new Filter Wizard use fully qualified syntax. Generally speaking, this means that all filters must begin on the affected table or on a dimension table of the affected tables.

Although column-only filters cannot be created in 2022.1, existing column-only filters will migrate and will work without error as long as the filter can be applied unambiguously to all affected tables. In the vast majority of cases, this means that if you had a working column-only filter in a previous version, that filter will migrate and work in 2022.1. The primary reasons that a migrated column-only filter would not work are:

- If the filter was on a calculation or group with multiple tables, and the filter cannot be applied to all of the tables, then the filter is invalid and will cause an error. A different filtering approach may be needed to achieve the desired effect (as discussed in the previous section).
- If the report was created in 2021.1 and never upgraded, and had a column-only filter defined in the Grid Configuration settings, this will be migrated as a General filter. If the column cannot be applied to all tables referenced in the report, the filter will cause an error. In this case you should evaluate whether the filter was intended as a General filter or a Table-Specific filter, and attempt to re-create it using fully qualified syntax in the new Filter Wizard.

If the migrated column-only filter works, and you later need to edit this filter, keep in mind that the new Filter Wizard is unable to show specific values in the column due to the unqualified column reference. In this case you can delete the existing filter and re-create it using the new Filter Wizard, which will allow you to select specific values in the column.

- Other filter migration notes
  - If you have a dimension-level filter where the name of the validated column does not match the name of the lookup table, this filter will migrate and work. However, if you later need to edit this filter to select specific values in the column, the new Filter Wizard is unable to show these values due to the name mismatch. In this case you can delete the existing filter and re-create it using the new Filter Wizard, which will allow you to select specific values in the column.
  - If you have an existing filter that references an empty string value, this filter will migrate and work. However, the new Filter Wizard does not currently have support for creating empty string filters such as Request.Status<>''. Future versions of the Filter Wizard may add this support.
  - If you have an existing filter against null values, this filter will migrate and work. However, the new Filter Wizard does not currently have support for creating null value filters such as Request.StartDate IS NULL. Future versions of the Filter Wizard may add this support.

## Installation and technical changes

In order to upgrade to version 2022.1, your Axiom database must be at version 2020.4 or higher. This means that if you are upgrading from version 2020.3 or earlier, you must first upgrade the database to 2020.4 or higher before you can proceed with the 2022.1 upgrade. If you are an on-premise client, please see the *Installation Guide* for more information.

This note primarily applies to on-premise installations. If you have an Axiom Cloud system, Axiom Support will take care of the necessary updates when upgrading your system.

# Preparing and scheduling upgrades

Syntellis strongly encourages clients to upgrade to the latest version, to keep your software current and to gain access to the new features and enhancements introduced in each release.

**IMPORTANT:** If your Axiom system includes installed vertical-specific products, please consult the release notes for the applicable product suite for further information and product-specific installation instructions.

- 1. **Review release notes**: Review this document to familiarize yourself with the new features and functionality, and any upgrade considerations.
- 2. Schedule an installation date: Submit a request to your organization's Axiom administrator to contact support@syntellis.com to schedule an installation date and time, with at least three days advance notice. The request should include the following information:
  - Desired Axiom platform version.
  - Indicate whether to first refresh the test sandbox with a copy of the production instance of Axiom and apply update(s) to it. If so, provide the earliest date that Syntellis can do this.
  - Propose an approximate two-hour downtime window when Syntellis can apply updates to the production instance of Axiom during regular business hours: Monday through Friday, 7 AM to 7 PM Central (except holidays recognized by Syntellis).

**IMPORTANT:** Although Syntellis strives to maintain backward-compatibility with each release, any upgrade has the potential to interrupt system functionality. The Upgrade considerations section details known impacts to existing functionality, however, other impacts may be unforeseen at the time of release, or may be particular to your system. We strongly recommend performing the upgrade first on a test sandbox and then testing critical system functionality.

# Getting help and training

Syntellis provides world-class resources at your fingertips directly within Axiom. In Axiom Help you can find comprehensive software documentation—including detailed instructions, examples, and reference information—as well as a troubleshooting knowledge base, documents, videos, and release updates. You can also find links to our Syntellis Academy training site and our Syntellis Central client portal.

Axiom Help is accessible from either the Desktop Client (Excel and Windows) or the Web Client:

• Desktop Client: On the Axiom ribbon tab, click Help.

File	AXIOM	AXIOM DES	IGNER	Home										
😨 Budge 🔞 Capita	et • Il Requests	Reports	Tables	Imports	Manage	Gave ▼ ☐ Change View ▼ → GoTo ▼	Refresh • • Q Drill • Freeze Panes	∛ Quick Filter ⊡ Forms ▼	Print •		<ul> <li>分 Show Home</li> <li>✓ Formula Bar</li> <li>✓ Headings</li> </ul>	Protect 🕶	(?) Help	Close Axiom Software •
File (	Groups	Reports	Ad	lministrat	ion		File Options		F	ile Output	Display	Advanced	Help	Exit

• Web Client: Click the question mark icon (?) in the top right of the gray task bar.

AXIOM Axiom Home Favorites ~ Recent Places ~	Reports v Forms Explorer Intelligence Center		Д	¢	CA	H
					슙	?
Axiom System: Axiom Software Test System						Î
	∾ Quick Links	★ Favorites				

Context-sensitive help is also available throughout the software. In most dialogs, you can click the question mark icon (?) in the top right corner to access information about the current feature. Some pages in the Web Client also have context-sensitive help.

### Escalating to Axiom Support

As always, we appreciate your commitment to Syntellis. If you have any questions about upgrading to version 2022.1, please contact us via Syntellis Central. You can go to the Syntellis Central site directly, or you can click the Support link on the Axiom Help home page.



# Issues fixed in 2022.1

The following issues were fixed in version 2022.1.

ltem	Description	
35442	lssue:	When creating new plan files using Process Plan Files, the confirmation message incorrectly states that no plan files were created.
	Status:	The confirmation message now correctly recognizes that plan files were created.
37091	lssue:	If a general process definition references a file group that has been deleted, an object reference error occurs when attempting to open the process definition.
	Status:	The process definition can be opened and the missing file group is noted in the dialog.
58640	Issue:	If an Axiom function which opens a dialog (such as GetCalcMethod) is clicked many times in quick succession (more than double-click), the Excel Client may crash.
	Status:	The Excel response that causes the crash is now detected and handled by the application, and logged in the client log. When this occurs, the dialog may simply not open, but the application remains responsive so that you can try again.

# Appendix: Version 2022.1 Patches

This section details the fixes and enhancements in patch releases for Axiom version 2022.1. For assistance with any patch, you can contact Support using Syntellis Central.

Axiom patches are cumulative. All fixes and enhancements included in prior patches are included in the current patch.

### Current patch: 2022.1.12

- 139408: Add new announcement. When today's date is picked as start date, it is saved as the previous date.
- 140193: Comparative Analytics: Error running CA\_ImportDataJob due to invalid source file format (Parquet file)
- 140580: Updated translations for Swedish, French, and Dutch.

### Patch: 2022.1.11

This patch contains fixes for internal features. No client facing fixes were included in this patch.

Microsoft, Excel, Windows, SQL Server, Azure, and Power BI are trademarks or registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries.

This document is Syntellis Performance Solutions, LLC Confidential Information. This document may not be distributed, copied, photocopied, reproduced, translated, or reduced to any electronic medium or machine-readable format without the express written consent of Syntellis Performance Solutions, LLC.

Copyright © 2022 Syntellis Performance Solutions, LLC. All rights reserved. Updated: 5/13/2022